








DOCTOR OF SCIENCE: JORDAN J. COHEN, M.D.

As President and Chief Executive Office of the Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC), Jordan J.
Cohen, M.D., leads the Association’s support and service to the nation’s medical schools and teaching hospitals.
The Washington-based association was founded in 1876, and represents all 125 U.S. medical schools, nearly 400
major teaching hospitals, 89 academic and research societies, and more than 160,000 U.S. medical students and
residents.

His almost 40-year career in academic medicine has included positions at some of the most prestigious
institutions in the country. Most recently, he served as Dean of the Medical School and Professor of Medicine at
the State University of New York at Stony Brook, and President of the Medical Staff at University Hospital. In
his six-year administration at Stony Brook, Dr. Cohen fostered the Medical Center’s development as a regional
health care provider and launched an innovative model curriculum that emphasized the changing role of medicine
in modern society.

Prior to serving as Dean at SUNY-Stony Brook, Dr. Cohen served as Professor and Associate Chairman of
Medicine at the University of Chicago-Pritzker School of Medicine, and Physician-in-Chief and Chairman of the
Department of Medicine at the Michael Reese Hospital and Medical Center. He has held medical faculty
positions at Harvard, Brown, and Tufts universities. Dr. Cohen is also a former President of the Medical Staff at
the New England Medical Center Hospital in Boston.

He has held a wide variety of leadership positions in almost all aspects of academic medicine, including Chair of
the American Board of Internal Medicine and the Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education, as well
as President of the Association of Program Directors of Internal Medicine. A member of the American College of
Physicians since 1978, he has served as Vice Chair of the Board of Regents and Chair of its Education Policy
Committee; he was awarded a mastership from the college in 1993.

Concurrent with his leadership of the AAMC, Dr. Cohen also serves on the Board of Directors of the Foundation
for Biomedical Research, the China Medical Board, and Research! America, and is a Trustee of the Educational
Commission for Foreign Medical Graduates. He is a member of the Special Medical Advisory Group of the
Department of Veterans Affairs. In 1994, Dr. Cohen was named a member of the National Academy of Sciences’
Institute of Medicine. He is a member of the board of directors of the China Medical Board of New York.

He is a graduate of Yale University and Harvard Medical School and completed his postgraduate training in
internal medicine on the Harvard service at the Boston City Hospital. He completed a fellowship in nephrology
at the Tufts-New England Medical Center. His chief areas of research interest are acid-base metabolism and
renal physiology. He is the author of more than 100 publications and is editor of Kidney International’s
Nephrology Forum.

THE UNIVERSITY MACE

The Thomas Jefferson University mace, carried for the first time in the 1986
commencement ceremonies by Grand Marshal Robert Mandle, Ph.D., was de-
signed and cast by Howard Serlick, member of the Guild of Mastercraftsmen,
Winterthur Scholar, and Chief Conservator (Gilding) of the Historical Society of
Pennsylvania. It was crafted by silversmith Eugene Zweigle and woodturner
Michael Copeland.

The four-foot-long, fourteen-pound mace is made of ebony highlighted with
lapis lazuli to reflect Jefferson’s colors (black and blue). It features a miniature of
Henry Mitchell’s sculpture, The Winged Ox, symbol of Saint Luke the Physician,
the original of which stands beside the Scott Building on Walnut Street. The
miniature was cast in silver by Mister Zweigle, who also fabricated the University
seal, the profile of Thomas Jefferson, mounted at the base of the staff. The J. E.
Caldwell Company coordinated the project.

Mister Mitchell’s original statue of The Winged Ox, adopted by the University
in 1976 as its symbol of clinical excellence, is mounted on a column containing the
names of fifty medical scientists who have most advanced the art of healing. It also
reflects the historical evolution of Thomas Jefferson University from its beginnings
as Jefferson Medical College in 1824 to its current status as an academic health
center comprising the Medical College, the College of Health Professions, the
College of Graduate Studies, and the Thomas Jefferson University Hospital. a part
of the Jefferson Health System.

The mace, a grand emblem of the University’s heritage, is carried at the head of
all formal academic processions.



THE ACADEMIC COSTUME

The wearing of academic dress dates back to the early days of the oldest universities in the world. In the American
Council on Education’s book entitled American Universities and Colleges, it is suggested that “gowns may have been
counted necessary for warmth in the unheated buildings frequented by medieval scholars. Hoods seem to have served to
cover the tonsured head...”

Throughout the years European universities have continued to show great diversity in their academic dress.
American universities on the other hand, when they decided to adopt academic dress in 1895, immediately established a
code of regulations which today is followed by almost all American institutions. The establishment of this code has
made it possible to distinguish the Associates, Bachelors, Masters and Doctors and at the same time recognize the uni-
versity which has given them the degree. Revisions to the code have occurred from time to time.

The Associate in Arts and Bachelor’s gowns have pointed sleeves and are worn closed. The Master’s gown has
oblong sleeves, open at the wrist. The rear part of its oblong shape is square cut and the front part has an arc cut away,
and is worn open or closed. The Doctor’s gown has bell-shaped sleeves. It is worn opened or closed. Cotton poplin or
similar material is used for the Associate’s, Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees, and rayon or silk ribbed material is used
for the Doctor’s degree. The majority of gowns are black but a number of institutions have adopted other colors to iden-
tify special programs or groups within the institution.

The hoods vary in length: 48 inches for the Doctor’s degree, 42 inches for the Master’s and 36 inches for the
Bachelor’s and Associate’s. All hoods are lined in silk in the academic color or colors of the institution conferring the
degree. If the institution has more than one color, the colors are shown in divisions using chevrons. The binding or edge
of the Doctor’s. Master’s and Bachelor’s hoods are usually made of velvet in the color designating the subject in which
the degree was granted. The Associate of Arts hood has no velvet border. The outside is black.

Black mortarboards are most commonly worn; six-sided tams of various colors may be used.

Some of the colors in the bindings of the hoods are:

WHite < comamawes Arts and Letters (1 [ Medicine
AN e e s Business ApHEot . vovemsnes Nursing
1 o Dentistry datk blug ...oocioma Philosophy
light blue ........ Education salmon pink .. .. ... Public Health
parple... ... e s Law golden yellow .... Science

The colors of the linings of the hoods for some Philadelphia academic health institutions are:
black and blue . ... Thomas Jefferson University red, white and blue  MCP ¢ Hahnemann
red and blue. . .. .. University of Pennsylvania School of Medicine
white and cherry .. Temple University

THE JEFFERSON PROCESSIONAL

The Jefferson Processional was commissioned by the Alumni Association of Jefferson Medical College and played
for the first time on November 15. 1974, at the Sesquicentennial Celebration of Jefferson Medical College of Thomas
Jefferson University. This piece was presented to Thomas Jefferson University by the President of the Alumni
Association of Jefferson Medical College, Doctor John J. Gartland. It was composed by Burle Marx.

THE PRESIDENTIAL BADGE OF THOMAS JEFFERSON UNIVERSITY

The President’s Badge was created for the Inauguration of Lewis W. Bluemle, Jr., M.D., the third President of
Thomas Jefferson University, on September 7, 1977. It consists of four official corporate seals of Thomas Jefferson
University and the predecessor corporation, The Jefferson Medical College of Philadelphia. These seals were used to
mark diplomas, certificates, and other official documents and have been gold-plated to form the Presidential Badge.

The medallion on the President’s right is the corporate seal of Thomas Jefferson University today and was created
in 1969 when Jefferson Medical College became Thomas Jefferson University. It carries a contemporary likeness of
Thomas Jefferson.

The other three medallions are the various seals that were used in Jefferson Medical College for many years. The
oldest marked every diploma that was issued by the College from 1839 to 1967. This seal carries a traditional likeness
of a young Thomas Jefferson and the founding date of the College as 1826. Prior to 1839 the diploma of Jefferson
Medical College carried the seal of the Jetferson College in Canonsburg, Pennsylvania — the parent institution.

Another seal was developed in 1967 as a result of research done by the late Edward L. Bauer, Emeritus Professor of
Pediatrics, who determined that the founding year of Jefferson Medical College was 1824 rather than 1826. This seal is
identical to the present corporate seal except the words “Thomas Jefferson University” replace “Jefferson Medical
College.” It was used for only two years — from 1967 to 1969.

The Presidential Badge is on permanent display in the Scott Library and is used at all convocations of the
University.



